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Alameda County Mental Health Board 
ADULT COMMITTEE MINUTES  

Oct. 19, 2015 ♦ 12:00pm-2:00pm 
Alvarado Niles Room 

 
Meeting called to order @ 12:00pm by Chair Abu Rahim 
 
Welcome/Introductions 
 

MHB Members:   Abu Rahim, Lorene Kiger, and Luvenia Jones 
BHCS Staff:   James Wagner and Carl Pascual  
Committee Members:    Joe Rose (Resident, District 1), Yvonne Rutherford and Amy Coulter 

 

ITEM DISCUSSION  PLAN/ACTION 

Approval of Adult 
Committee Sept. 2015 
Minutes 

There was no correction the Adult Committee August 2015 minutes. Ms. Kiger 
made a motion to approve the minutes as presented.   

M/S/C Ms. Kiger/ 
Mr. Rose 
Motion passed  

Approval of agenda Mr. Rahim would like to add discussion on the MHB Annual Report submitted to 
the Board of Supervisor (BOS). Mr. Rose made a motion to approve the Adult 
Oct. Agenda.  

Mr. Rose/ 
Ms. Kiger 
Motion passed 

Continue with discussion 
on reduction of re-
hospitalizations, 
Procedures to reduce re-
hospitalization.  
Continue to discuss the 
STEPS program, contract 
per WIC5604.2. (a) The 
local mental health board 
shall do all of the 
following…  
The STEPS program is 
being used as a real life 
example of how the MHB 
is to perform its duties as 
an advisory body. 

Mr. Rahim stated that the committee had discussed the nature of this item last 
month. They are trying to stay in line with what the MHB is mandated to do. One 
of the things that the board has to do is to evaluate and possibly make 
recommendations to both BHCS and or BOS concerning the effectiveness of 
the services that BHCS is doing or contracting per WIC 5604.2.  Last month the 
committee engaged that process by looking at the STEPS Programs.  
 
It was mentioned that STEPS program was one of the two programs on the 
AB1421 recommendations that were approved and funded, and the other one 
was the hiring of a Critical Manager at John George.  
 
One committee member talked about his communication with Network Office 
concerning STEPS program Exhibit A not being current (i.e., Contract). He 
related that he only got info for 2014-2015. He would like to know how STEPS 
program was granted additional $250,000 funding without a contract for 2015-
2016. He stated that he will keep informing the BOS Health Committee and the 
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full BOS on this concern as a public comment. He stated that up to now he 
hasn’t gotten any update from the Network Office.  
 
Mr. Rahim stated that it is necessary to ask if it is a normal practice to roll over a 
contract without having an updated contract.  He will forward question to the 
Adult System of Care Director.  
 
A committee member talked about the bidder’s conference that he attended 
which was about the RFP that is supposed to be addressing reducing recidivism 
rate of incarcerated people. He related that he asked the Adult System of Care 
Director at the bidder’s conference how STEPS Program correlates to this RFP. 
The answer he got was they don’t correlate because STEPS program only deals 
with John George. He would like clarification on the RFP and STEPS Program.  
 
An individual expressed what she thought the committee should be discussing 
something other than the topic being discussed.  
 
She was asked what needs to be addressed that would be meaningful for the 
committee to forward to the MHB and BHCS.  
 
She responded that there should be a follow-up with accountability. Need to 
know: What is the requirement for giving people more money? What are the 
outcomes? What is the evaluation process for contracts? How are they 
disconnecting reentry services in mental health services if they are expanding 
the mental health services at Santa Rita through more facilities expansion as 
opposed to community resource expansion? Get the courts and the behavioral 
health system to reevaluate people in their homes especially early on in 
treatment and that medication is not really addressing the underlining problems. 
 
Mr. Rahim stated that the committee is talking about STEPS Program as one 
topic trying to get answers from BHCS: the focus was not to single out STEPS 
in order to find fault or cast judgment, but to begin a process or learning how a 
particular program is functioning. 
 
It was stated that it’s important to talk about programs and find out what is 
purchased with public funds. It was suggested to get concrete suggestion for 
programs that will be meaningful for families and to help people who are taking 
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care of their loved ones, in their homes, with serious mental illness; because 
there is a big gap in the system regarding better support for the family voice in 
mental health, and what kind of services will better served the family/consumer 
needs as a whole healing mechanism.  
 
It was asked that we should look at statistics of admissions to John George in 
relation to the past and present population within Alameda County, and have 
this population outpaced the original services?  And we should look to see if 
psychiatric drugs use is rising within the county and within different age groups. 
It was addressed that recidivism is continuing and medication treatment needs 
to be looked at as well.   
 
Mr. Rahim asked the following questions to the Director of Adult System of 
Care: 
1) How does the county continue to fund a program without a contract? Does it 

rollover? Is it procedural or policy? 
2) How the STEPS Program funded additional $250,000 without an existing 

contract. 
3) Is it a normal practice to continue to fund a program without renewing the 

existing contract? 
 
The replied was that it’s not unusual for contracts not to be ready yet at the 
beginning of a new fiscal year and for providers to be placed on an interim 
contract which is essentially rolling over the prior year’s contract until any 
changes are made and that’s just been a bandwidth issue on our Network Office 
particularly with some of the very large providers e.g. Telecare and John 
George that are very large and complicated contracts and they are often get put 
in an interim contract for a period of time until all the details are worked out.  
 
An additional answer was given as they don’t want the administrative process to 
hold up any continuity of services for clients and to ensure that there is no 
breakage of services; the Administration does use that period of time to 
renegotiate or renew contracts to look at performance and it may take pass the 
beginning of the new fiscal year so the interim/rollover contract is not meant to 
be the permanent contract but to ensure that there is continuity of services over 
the course of renegotiation. (In all fairness to BHCS staff, this was a very 
definitive answer to a very serious issue of great concern to the Committee) 
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A committee member talked about his effort to get the Exhibit A 2015-2016 for 
Steps Program but he was told that it’s not available yet. He would like to know 
how the Department added $250,000 funding without an Exhibit A. He also 
asked for a report on STEPS Program for 2014-2015 to know their performance 
but expressed that he still hasn’t gotten it either.  
 
Some clarifications on STEPS program as well as about contracts were 
mentioned such as: 
 Services provided to an individual who was a high utilizer at PES 
 People who are put in acute or sub-acute settings can be tracked 
 They know the result of STEPS and they are working to get hard data 
 There are some contract providers that don’t have their contracts rollover yet 

and they are also dealing with interim contracts 
 The Dept. has many internal staffing issues e.g. to manage the workload and 

to get the contracts rolled out.  
 
It was stated that enhancing the Newwort staff should be a priority, because to 
roll over contracts just to provide continuity is not a good practice, there should 
be a priority of picking the best services to roll over or to give interim contract to, 
and there should have reported first to justify what they are doing or are worthy 
of being refunded. Therefore, the Network Office should be looked upon as a 
priority department. 
 
A committee member expressed that he would like to know how recovery is 
defined and how quality of life is defined. He addressed concern how contracts 
are being written and how are they reported on. He stated that he will continue 
to report to BOS Health Committee on his concerns about contracts not 
identifying results.  
 
A clarification was asked about the RFP from the bidder’s conference that is 
supposed to be addressing reducing recidivism rate of incarcerated people, why 
the RFP is only dealing with John George and it doesn’t correlates with STEPS 
program.   
 
It was clarified that STEPS Program deals primarily with referrals from John 
George and sub-acute which are Gladman, Villa and Morton Baker and step 
down from those communities. Many of those referrals have a significant 
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incarceration history. STEPS Program is not precluded from taking people 
directly from jail but it hasn’t been where they primarily get referrals. The RFP is 
for the Case and Care Management which is primarily a program to get the 
AB109 population put into benefits.  
 
It was expressed that there should be intersection between various contracts.  
 
There was a comment about partnering with the Dept. to identify what kind of 
goals need to be set in terms of having positive relationship with providers. It 
was suggested that the committee invite Decision Support to give report on 
Medical Population and also invite a representative from Network Office to come 
and highlight what is their process. Find out what it would take to adopt 
outcomes based contracting as a goal. This committee can help the Dept. to 
educate the BOS about the importance of outcomes.  
 
Other points addressed were:  
 Electronic health records 
 Over medication of clients 
 Medication compliance  
 BHCS needs to address traumatic environment  
 A person with serious mental illness needs protective supervision provided 

by In Home Support Services  
 

 
Meeting Adjourned @ 2:00PM ◊ Minutes submitted by Agnes Catolos 


